
TENNESSEE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

JUNE 23, 2025 

1) Call meeting to order, establish that there is a physical quorum, and receive public comments on

actionable items in accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 8-44-112 and Board guidelines

2) Approval of minutes from the May 19, 2025, meeting

3) Consideration and approval of the following State Revolving Fund Clean Water loans:

4) Consideration and approval of requests from the Ocoee Utility District:

a) A request to issue USDA Water and Wastewater Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (the

“Series 2025 BANS”) in an amount not to exceed $37,500,000 on parity with its SRF loans

b) A request to issue USDA Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds in an amount not to exceed

$37,500,000 (the “USDA Bonds”) on parity with its SRF loans

c) A request to issue Water and Wastewater Revenue Improvement Bonds (the “Series 2025

Bonds”) in an amount not to exceed $25,000,000 on parity with its SRF loans

d) A request for TLDA approval of a waiver of the enforcement of a provision in the TLDA SRF

Policy and Guidance for Borrowers and the loan agreement that prohibits the issuance of

additional indebtedness for entities who have not submitted their audits timely

5) Consideration and approval of the Tennessee Local Development Authority’s Debt Management

Policy

6) Report on the notification from the City of Portland submitted to comply with TLDA SRF Policy and

Guidance from Borrowers

7) Adjourn

 SRF Base Principal Total Interest

Loan Forgiveness Request Rate Term

Brownsville Energy Authority, CWB23 2025-495 12,000,300.00$ 4,999,700.00$  17,000,000.00$  1.32% 20

Parsons, CWB22 2025-490 803,417.50$   803,417.50$    1,606,835.00$   1.32% 20

AGENDA  



 
TENNESSEE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

May 19, 2025 

 

The Tennessee Local Development Authority (TLDA) met on Monday, May 19, 2025, at 8:40 a.m., CT, in the 

Volunteer Conference Center, 2nd Floor, Cordell Hull Building, Nashville, Tennessee. Secretary of State Tre Hargett 

was present and presided over the meeting. 

 

The following members were also present:  

  

The Honorable Jason E. Mumpower, Comptroller of the Treasury 

The Honorable David H. Lillard, Jr., State Treasurer 

Commissioner Jim Bryson, Department of Finance and Administration 

 

The following members participated electronically as authorized by Tennessee Code Annotated § 8-44-108: 

 

 Mayor Rollen “Buddy” Bradshaw, Senate Appointee 

Mayor Paige Brown, House Appointee 

 

The following member was absent: 

 

The Honorable Bill Lee, Governor 

 

Recognizing a physical quorum present, Secretary Hargett called the meeting to order. Secretary Hargett, in 

accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 8-44-112 and Board guidelines, asked Ms. Sandra Thompson, TLDA Assistant 

Secretary and the Director of State Government Finance (SGF) if any requests for public comment had been 

received. Ms. Thompson responded that no requests for public comment had been received. 

 

Secretary Hargett stated that the first item of business was approval of the minutes from the April 10, 2025, TLDA 

meeting. Comptroller Mumpower moved approval of the minutes, and Commissioner Bryson seconded the motion. 

Secretary Hargett asked if there was any discussion. Hearing none, he called for a vote.  The minutes were 

unanimously approved.  

 

Secretary Hargett stated that the next item on the agenda was the consideration and approval of a Clean Water State 

Revolving Fund (CWSRF) loan. Secretary Hargett recognized Ms. Vena Jones, Program Manager at the Tennessee 

Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC), to present the CWSRF unobligated balances and one loan 

request. Ms. Jones presented the Report on Funds Available for Loan Obligation for the CWSRF Loan Program. 

She reported that, as of the last TLDA meeting of February 13, 2025, that balances had been presented, the 

Unobligated Fund balance was $245,425,261. Since that time, the unobligated balance had increased by $132,981 

with the return of unused loan funding for a project from the Cleveland Utilities Authority. Upon approval of the 

$231,000 loan request to be considered by the Authority, the remaining funds available for loan obligations in the 

standard CWSRF would be $245,327,242. Additionally, Ms. Jones reported that as of May 19, 2025, $1,358,000 in 

additional funding from the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act for federal fiscal year 2022 had been allocated 

to the Emerging Contaminant fund. Secretary Hargett asked if there were any questions on the report, and there 

were none. Ms. Jones then presented the CWSRF loan request. 

 

• Plateau UD (CW21 2025-498) Requesting $231,000 ($115,500 (50%) loan, $115,500 (50%) principal 

forgiveness), for a planning and design loan for wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) 

improvements/advanced treatment: improvements to the WWTP includes replacing the mechanical bar 

screen and grit chamber; construction of a new chlorination/dichlorination building; installation of a tertiary 

filter pump; relocation of the lab building; and electrical components; recommended interest rate of 1.13% 

based on the Ability to Pay Index;  Priority ranking 11 of 57 (2023); Term: 5 years 

 



 
Secretary Hargett made a motion to approve the loan request. Comptroller Mumpower seconded the motion. 

Secretary Hargett asked if there was any discussion. Hearing none, he called for a vote.  The loan was unanimously 

approved.  

 

Secretary Hargett noted that this concluded the business requiring action by the Authority and  Comptroller 

Mumpower departed to attend another meeting. 

 

Secretary Hargett stated that the next item on the agenda was notification respective to the borrowers affected by 

Hurricane Helene that had accepted the offered loan forbearance. Secretary Hargett recognized Ms. Jones to present 

the item. Ms. Jones reported that three SRF borrowers - the Erwin Utilities Authority (Erwin), the Town of 

Parrottsville (Parrottsville), and the Town of White Pine (White Pine)- had signed the Forbearance Agreement 

previously approved by the TLDA. She noted that Erwin opted for forbearance on eight SRF loans, Parrottsville 

asked that two SRF loans be included in the forbearance, and White Pine had not yet started its projects but had 

requested forbearance on two SRF loans. Ms. Jones also mentioned that TDEC had scheduled a webinar for the 

utilities in the area impacted by Hurricane Helene to discuss its anticipated $55,000,000 SRF Helene Emergency 

Response Capitalization Grants that TDEC plans to apply for in July. Secretary Hargett asked Ms. Jones to email 

the invitation for the webinar to the TLDA staff. Ms. Jones responded affirmatively, noting that the initial meeting 

that was scheduled was an informational meeting.  She stated that she would send that meeting invite along with 

any subsequent TDEC webinars regarding the grant as soon as they were scheduled. Secretary Hargett asked if there 

were any questions for Ms. Jones.  

 

Hearing no questions, Secretary Hargett stated that the next item of business was the report on the notification from 

the Town of Brighton submitted to comply with the Tennessee Local Development Authority State Revolving Fund 

Policy & Guidance for Borrowers (the “Policy & Guidance”). Secretary Hargett recognized Ms. Thompson to 

present the report. Ms. Thompson explained that pursuant to the Policy and Guidance, Brighton was required to 

notify the TLDA of its intent to incur debt. She reported that Brighton planned to issue a Water and Sewer System 

Revenue and Tax Capital Outlay Note, Series 2025 in an amount not to exceed $428,000. She stated that the notes 

would be issued with a lien position subordinate to its outstanding SRF loans. Secretary Hargett asked if there were 

any questions. Hearing none, he stated that the Authority would consider itself duly notified. 

 

Hearing no further business, Secretary Hargett asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Treasurer Lillard 

motioned to adjourn the meeting, and Commissioner Bryson seconded the motion. Secretary Hargett asked if there 

was any discussion. Hearing none, Secretary Hargett called for a vote. All members responded in the affirmative. 

 

The meeting was adjourned. 

 

Approved on this ____ day of __________, 2025. 

 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 Sandra Thompson 

 Assistant Secretary  



, 

Unobligated Balance as of May 19, 2025 TLDA Meeting 245,327,242$             

Increases: Loan Number Amount

-$                             
Unobligated Fund Balance as of June 23, 2025 245,327,242$             

Decreases: Loan Number  Amount

Brownsville Energy Authority CWB23 2025-495 17,000,000$             
     *Principal Amount $12,000,300
     *Principal Forgiveness $4,999,700

City of Parsons CWB22 2025-490 1,606,835$               
  *Principal Amount $803,417.50
  * Principal Forgiveness $803,417.50

(18,606,835)$              

Remaining Unobligated Funds as of June 23, 2025 226,720,407$             

June 23, 2025

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION
DIVISION OF WATER RESOURCES

Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) Loan Program
Funds Available for Loan Obligation



Unobligated Emerging Contaminants Balance as of  May 19 2025 TLDA Meeting 1,358,000$    

Increases: Loan Number Amount
-$    

-$    
Unobligated Fund Balance as of June 23, 2025 1,358,000$    

Decreases: Loan Number Loan Amount

-$    

Remaining Funds Available for Loan Obligations as of June 23, 2025 1,358,000$    

June 23, 2025

Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) Non-Revolving Funds
Funds Available for Loan Obligation



FACT SHEET 

June 23, 2025 
 

Borrower:    Brownsville Energy Authority 

Project Number:   CWB23 2025-495 

Requested SRF Funding:  $17,000,000 

Term:     20 years  

ATPI     0 

Rate:     3.29% X 40 (Tier 1) = 1.32% 

Companion Loan:   N/A 

 

Project: 

New Wastewater Treatment Plant: Construction of a new 2.0 million gallon per day sequencing batch 

reactor to replace the existing Trickling Filter Plant. 

 

Total Project Cost:    $17,000,000 

Project Funding: 

 SRF Loan Principal (70.59%)  $12,000,300 

 Principal Forgiveness (29.41%)  $  4,999,700 

 Local Funds    $           -0- 

  

County:                                                                     Haywood County  

Consulting Engineer:     J. R. Wauford & Company, Consulting Engineers, Inc.  

Priority Ranking List:    2023 

Priority Ranking:    39 of 571 

Public Meeting:     09/25/2024 

 

Financial Information: 

Operating Revenues:     $4,193,800 

Current Rate:     $28.85 

Financial Review Rate:    $28.85 

Effective Date of Rate Change, if applicable: $33.18 (effective: April 01, 2025)2 

      $38.15 (effective: April 01, 2026) 

      $45.78 (effective: April 01, 2027) 

      $54.94 (effective: April 01, 2028) 

 Residential User Charge:   5,000 gal/month 

 
1 The project ranked #39 of 57 on the 2023 Priority Ranking List. 
2 BEA conducted a comprehensive study on water and wastewater rates, projecting capital projects for the next 

five years. This rate study provides forecasts for a five-year capital improvement plan. Based on the findings of the 

study, BEA approved a rate increase during their board meeting on March 5, 2024, prior to the SRF financial review 

for this project. 

  



FACT SHEET 

June 23, 2025 
 

Customer Base:     4,877 

 Audit Report Filed:    10/30/2024 (Timely) 

 Approved Annual Budget   Yes 

  

Additional Revenue Recommendation:  No 

 Initial Financial Sufficiency Review:  08/21/2024 

 Updated Financial Sufficiency Review:  03/03/2025 

The financial sufficiency review indicates that revenues and rates are sufficient to repay its SRF loan(s).  

 

 

Additional Security 

A security deposit equal to one year’s maximum annual debt service is required to be deposited with 

the TLDA before any funds are disbursed to the borrower. The anticipated required security deposit 

for this loan is $683,028. 







FACT SHEET 
June 23, 2025 

   

 

 

Borrower:    City of Parsons 

Project Number:   CWB22 2025-490 

Requested SRF Funding:   $1,606,835 

Term:     20 years  

ATPI     20  

Rate:     3.29% X 40 (Tier 1) = 1.32% 

Companion Loan:   N/A 

 

Project: 

Collection System Relocation: Installation of approximately 1,500 linear feet of 12-inch 

diameter interceptor sewer, two manholes, and a lift station from W 4th St to Gum Avenue and 

connecting to an existing force main at Coley Avenue. 

 

Total Project Cost:    $   1,606,835 

Project Funding: 

 SRF Loan Principal (50.00%)  $  803,417.50 

 Principal Forgiveness (50.00%)  $  803,417.50 

 Local Funds    $                  -0- 

 Other Funds    $                  -0- 

   

  

County:       Decatur County 

Consulting Engineer:     TLM Associates 

Priority Ranking List:    2022 

Priority Ranking:    26 of 1041 

Public Meeting:     09/09/2024 

Financial Information: 

Operating Revenues:     $1,633,653 

Current Rate:     $ 30.51 

Financial Review Rate:    $ 30.51  

Effective Rates, if applicable:   N/A 

    

Residential User Charge:   5,000 gal/month 

Customer Base:     2,000 

 Audit Report Filed:                 12/02/2024 (Timely) 

 Approved Annual Budget:   Yes 

 Additional Revenue Recommended:  No 

 Financial Sufficiency Review:   06/25/2024  

 
1 The project ranked #26 of 104 on the 2022 Priority Ranking List. 



FACT SHEET 
June 23, 2025 

   

 

              Updated Financial Sufficiency Review:  01/14/2025 

 

The financial sufficiency review indicates that revenues and rates proposed are sufficient to repay the 

SRF loan(s).  

 

Additional Security 

The borrower pledges its unobligated state-shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to the maximum 

annual debt service (MADS) requirements under the loan agreement.  

The SSTs received by the borrower from the state in the prior fiscal year:  $338,486 

MADS:  Prior Obligations: $ 144,336 

Proposed loan(s): 

CWB22 2025-490 $   45,728 

Totals    $ 190,064 

 

MADS as a percentage of SSTs:  56.15% 









June 23, 2025 

Ocoee Utility District  

Approval to Issue Debt and Modification of Lien Position 

The Ocoee Utility District (the “District”) has submitted the following requests to the Tennessee Local 

Development Authority (the “TLDA”) for consideration and approval. The TLDA’s approval for the District to 

issue additional debt and modify lien position is required by provisions set forth in the State Revolving Fund 

(SRF) loan agreement and guidelines set forth in the TLDA/SRF Policy and Guidance for Borrowers. 

• A request to issue USDA Water and Wastewater Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (the “Series 2025

BAN”) in an amount not to exceed $37,500,000 on parity with its SRF loans;

• A request to issue USDA Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds in an amount not to exceed

$37,500,000 (the “USDA Bonds”) on parity with its SRF loans;

• A request to issue Water and Wastewater Revenue Improvement Bonds (the “Series 2025 Bonds”) in an

amount not to exceed $25,000,000 on parity with its SRF loans; and

• A request for TLDA approval of a waiver of the enforcement of a provision in the TLDA SRF Policy

and Guidance for Borrowers and the loan agreement that prohibits the issuance of additional

indebtedness for entities who have not submitted their audits timely.

1. The requestor is a:

   X    Utility District, Energy Authority, or Water/Wastewater Authority 

Will the proposed debt be secured by revenues other than revenues of the water/wastewater system (e.g. 

electric, gas)?  ___ Yes      X      No 

___   Municipality (town/city/county) 

____ General Obligation Debt 

____ Revenue Debt – Will the proposed debt be secured by revenues other than 

revenues of the water/wastewater system (e.g. electric, gas)? __Yes   X     No 

2. Lien Position:

  X    The borrower is requesting that the proposed debt be issued on parity with its outstanding SRF loans. 



 

 

Page 2 

 

 

 

  

___ The borrower is requesting to subordinate its outstanding SRF debt to the proposed debt  

         issuance.   

 

___ The borrower is not requesting a modification of lien position, and the proposed debt will be issued 

subordinate to the existing SRF debt.  

 

3. The purpose of the proposed debt issuance is: 

             Refunding  

 

   X    New Money 

 

4. Additional Information: 

Purpose for Issuing the Proposed Series 2025 BAN and the USDA Bonds: 

The Series 2025 BAN will provide interim financing for the USDA Bonds—collectively referred to as the “USDA 

Loan”. The proceeds from the Series 2025 BAN will be utilized to fund the design, permitting, construction, 

capitalized interest, and other administrative, engineering, fiscal, legal, and related costs necessary for 

comprehensive improvements to the District’s water system.  According to the District’s request letter, this critical 

project includes the development of a new water treatment plant and associated water lines, all of which are 

essential to ensuring a safe, reliable, and self-sustaining water supply for the community. It is important to note 

the proceeds of the USDA Bonds will repay the Series 2025 BAN approximately 24 months following their 

issuance date and that both obligations of indebtedness will not be outstanding at any time concurrently.  The 

2025 BANS are anticipated to be funded on or about October 1, 2025. The District noted that the USDA Bonds 

will bear interest at a rate of 2.75% which is lower than rates from other sources of funding, and assistance 

provided by USDA will also include grant funding of approximately $5 million dollars.  

The financed project shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

• The Ball Road Water Treatment Plant (WTP) will have a design capacity of 2.0 million gallons per day 

(MGD) and be located on the 147-acre "Ball Road Site" owned by the District on Ball Road. Specific and 

general processes include, but are not limited to, sedimentation basin, filter building with laboratory 

amenities, ground storage clearwell reservoirs, high service pumps, disinfection feed system, and solids 

disposal process. 

 

• The Wildwood Well Site, a 7-acre tract owned by the District on Trewhitt Road, will provide raw water 

to the proposed 2.0 MGD WTP. Specific and general processes include, but are not limited to, upgraded 

well source pump, booster station, and piping. 

 

• The raw water main will transfer well water from the well site to the Ball Road WTP for treatment. 

Further, potable water from the WTP will be distributed to two pressure zones on different pipelines. The 

water mains (raw and potable) will have a minimum design capacity of 2.0 MGD and be generally located 

along road ROW within easement.  

The District stated that the proceeds will be used to fund the repair of aging infrastructure and reduce the reliance 

on costly wholesale water purchases from surrounding providers resulting in long-term operational cost savings. 

Furthermore, the construction of a new facility will provide additional capacity and operational flexibility, 

allowing the District to complete necessary pipe repairs and transition to minimal water loss.  



 

 

Page 3 

 

 

 

  

 

Purpose for Issuing the Proposed Series 2025 Bonds: 

In addition to the USDA Loan, the District is requesting approval to issue Water and Wastewater Revenue 

Improvement Bonds (the “Series 2025 Bonds”) in an amount not to exceed $25,000,000 with a lien position that 

is on parity with the lien position of its SRF loans. 

The District is seeking strategic capital investments in both water and wastewater infrastructure, encompassing 

water treatment and distribution as well as wastewater treatment and collection systems. Summary of projects: 

 

The District states that the need for bond funding is critical for several reasons: 

1. Replacement of Aging Infrastructure - The existing Brighton Ridge facility (2010) has limited capacity 

and was not designed for long-term regional wastewater management. 

 

2. Increased Treatment Capacity - The District is in the process of designing and constructing a new 

Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP)1 to replace and consolidate its existing decentralized treatment 

facilities. The proposed WWTP will expand treatment capacity to 100,000 GPD, ensuring that the District 

can support current and future development, including a proposed 500-single family home community, 

Church and several other smaller residential developments. 

 

3. Sustainable Growth and Development - By constructing a centralized, modern WWTP, the District can 

support residential expansion while avoiding costly future upgrades or emergency infrastructure failures. 

Consolidating wastewater treatment into a single, modernized facility will reduce maintenance costs and 

improve efficiency compared to the operation of multiple smaller facilities. 

 

A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds will be utilized to provide matching funding for an American 

Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) grant which is required to be funded on or about August 1, 2025, and the timeline for 

the closing of the Series 2025 Bonds is scheduled to meet the ARPA grant requirements. 

 

 
1 This project is associated with TDEC’s State Water Infrastructure (SWIG) grant/match program. 



Page 4 

  

Security for Proposed Financings: 

The proposed debt will be payable from and secured by a pledge of the net revenues of the system on parity with 

the District’s currently outstanding parity indebtedness2. The District indicated that it intends to issue future  parity 

debt, and understands as evidenced in its letter, that under applicable State guidelines that all future debt of the 

District must first be approved by the TLDA. The District believes that the TLDA’s approval is in the public 

interest insofar as it will preserve the District’s ability to issue future debt on a parity lien basis minimizing costs 

to system ratepayers.  

The debt rating of the borrower is:  

Please indicate N/R if not rated. 

     N/R   Moody’s  

 A+/Negative   Standard and Poor’s 

  N/R          Fitch 

In August 2024, S&P Global Ratings revised its rating of the District's underlying rating from A+/Stable to 

A+/Negative. A copy of the 2024 S&P Ratings Report and Rationale has been provided.  

5. The following SRF loans are currently authorized/outstanding:

6. Compliance with SRF Loan Agreement:

a. Timely repayments [4.(a)]

X    Yes ____ No

b. Security Deposit (UDs and Authorities) [8.]

X   Yes            No

Amount on deposit: $205,200

2 The TLDA previously approved the District’s Series 2022 Bonds to be issued on parity with its three outstanding SRF 

loans at its February 23, 2022, meeting.  

Borrower Ocoee Utility District

Date 5/19/2025

Loan Type Loan # Status Disbursements

Available

to Draw

% Principal 

Forgiveness

Edison Balance

@5/19/2025 MADS*

Water DW6 19-210 Repayment 1,000,000$    - 20% 624,627$    46,236$     

Water DWF 19-211 Repayment 1,799,300          - 0% 1,541,822          103,991         

Water DWF 21-242 Repayment 1,000,000          - 0% 942,950              54,973           

3,799,300$    - 3,109,399$     205,200$    

*MADS is an estimate until final expenses have been determined

*Before funds are disbursed on a loan, a security deposit equal to MADS is required to be deposited with the TLDA



 

 

Page 5 

 

 

 

  

 

c. State-Shared Taxes (Municipalities) [8.]  N/A 

$                   SSTs received in prior fiscal year 

$                  Total MADs (with SST pledge) 

$                  Unobligated SSTs 

 

 

d. GAAP Accounting and Audited Annual Financial Statement Requirement [7.(g) and (m)(2)] 

 

The District did not timely file its audited financial statements with the Division of Local Government 

Audit through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, within six months after fiscal year end. Because the 

District did not timely file its required annual audit report, it is prohibited from issuing additional debt 

pursuant to the loan agreement and requests that the TLDA waive the enforcement of this requirement to 

allow the issuance of the debt. 

The District’s auditor stated that the FY23 audit was performed by a different audit firm and was filed 

late which delayed the new firm’s start of the FY24 audit. The auditor stated that the FY25 audit report is 

expected to be filed on time.  

 

e. Sufficient Revenues [7.(k)] 

__X    Yes ____ No 

 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the District’s audited financial statements reflected operating 

income of $1,176,808 and a positive change in net position of $421,133.  The statement of cash flows 

reflected debt service payments for FY24 of $1,668,019. 

 

The District reported $2,412,159 in unrestricted cash and investments. 

 

f. Debt Service Coverage Ratios [7.(l) and (m)(3) & (4)] 

 

The current and projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio meets or exceeds 1.2 times. 

      X     Yes    ___ No 

 

If no, include a schedule of revised rates and fees.   ___ Included       X    N/A 

 

Most Recent Fiscal Year (m)(3): 

The District’s debt service coverage ratio was 1.4x for FY24 and is estimated to be 1.4x for fiscal year 

2025 (calculated by the District in its submission).  The District has met the debt service coverage 

requirement for fiscal year 2024. 

Next Three Fiscal Years After Debt Issuance (m)(4): 

The District projects debt service ratios ranging from 1.2x to 1.8x for fiscal years 2026-2028 after the debt 

is issued. 

 

g. Is the entity currently under the jurisdiction of the Tennessee Board of Utility Regulation 

(TBOUR)? 

[7.(n)] 



Page 6 

__X__ Yes          No 

If yes, reason for referral:   ___ Water Loss _X__ Financial Distress   ____ Administrative Review 

If the reason is financial distress, include a schedule of revised rates and fees along with a copy of the 

corrective action order from the respective board.   ___ Included          N/A 

TBOUR Order 

TBOUR ordered a rate study, and the District engaged Jackson Thornton Certified Public Accountants 

and Consultants to perform a cost of service rate study in 2024. The study determined that rate increases 

were warranted. The District adopted a Resolution (NO. 2025-001) to provide for adjustment and increase 

of water and sewer rates on 1-27-2025.  

To fully comply with TBOUR’s order, the District must also submit the following documents to TBOUR 

by December 31, 2025.   

• A review of the capitalization policy, including any recommended modifications

• A review of the debt management policy, including any recommended modifications

• The creation of a five-year capital asset budget, to be taken from the current capital asset list and

to include future anticipated needs

• A review of relevant utility fees including but not limited to connection or tap fees, including any

recommended modifications

• Verification that all governing body members of the utility are in compliance with all relevant

training requirements

• A review of the leak adjustment policy, including any recommended modifications or adoption

of such policy should one not exist

7. Has the entity adopted and filed a budget with the Comptroller’s Office pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann.

§ 4-3-305?

X     Yes  No 

8. For recently created systems, has TBOUR approved a petition for the incorporation of the system?

 Yes    No      X    N/A 

9. Conclusion

Based on our analysis and the expectation that the District will comply with TBOUR’s order, staff recommends 

that the TLDA waive the enforcement of the audit filing requirement and approve the issuance of the USDA Loan 

and Series 2025 Bonds on parity with the District’s outstanding SRF Loans.  



OCOEE UTILITY DISTRICT 

Sandra W. Thompson, Director 
Comptroller of the Treasmy 
Division of State Government Finance 
Assistant Secretaiy to the TLDA 
425 Fifth Avenue North 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243-3400 

May 22, 2025 

VIA E-MAIL: sandi.thompson@cot.tn.i:ov 

Dear Ms. Thompson: 

Ocoee Utility District of Bradley and Polk Comities, Tennessee (the "District") requests that the 
Tennessee Local Development Authority ("TLDA") approve, at its June, regular meeting of its board of 
commissioners, or at a specially-called meeting prior thereto, issuance of not to exceed $37,500,000 in 
Water ai1d Wastewater Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, Series 2025 (the "Series 2025 BANS") and not 
to exceed $37,500,000 in Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds evidencing USDA financing (the "USDA 
Bonds"), interim ftnancing for the USDA Bonds being provided by the Series 2025 BANS (the Series 
2025 BANS and the USDA Bonds being referred to herein collectively as (the "USDA Loan"); and not to 
exceed $25,000,000 Water and Waster Revenue Improvement Bonds (the "Series 2025 Bonds"), all to be 
on parity of lien with the District's outstanding SRF Drinking Water Loans. The District's SRF Drinking 
Water Loans presently outstanding include the following: 

Ocoee SRF Drinking Water Loans Outstamling 

Loan ID 

2019-210 

2019-211 

2021-242 

Interest.Rm 

1.48% 

1.48% 

0.96% 

Balance £06/30/2024) FY Ejnal PMT 

$658,309.00 2040 

$1,615,731.00 2042 

984,860.00 2044 

$ 3,258,900.00 

Ocoee Utility District of Bradley and Polk Counties Tennessee - General Description: 

The District is located approximately 30 miles northeast of the City of Chattanooga, 75 miles 
southwest of Knoxville, 135 miles southeast of Nashville and 96 miles north of Atlanta. The District is a 
public corporation under the laws of the State of Tennessee, chartered pursuant to decree of the County 
Judge of Bradley County, Tennessee, dated October 27, 1964. The District is exclusively authorized to 
provide water service within the boundaries of its service area, which encompasses approximately 181 
square miles of eastern Bradley County and western Polk County. The District's boundaries extend from 

5631 WATERLEVEL HIGHWAY, SE 
CLEVELAND. TENNESSEE 37323 

VOICE (423) 559-8505 

P.O. BOX 305 
OCOEE, TENNESSEE 37361 

FAX (423) 559-8605 









Project 

HDPE Pipe Replacement with Ductile Iron Pipe 
(DIP) 

Total Estimated Project 

Proposed lncrease to Amount of SRF Loan 2021-242 

E stimat e d  
Cost 

$5,000.000 

$25,000,QQQ 

The Dish'ict in.tends to request an additional $300,000 in funding for the Car�enter Spring WTP 
clearwell tank, due to Wlforeseen geotechnical conditions encountered during construction. Subsurface 
investigations revealed necessruy 1·ework of the proposed foundation system to ensure structural integrity 
and long-tenn perf01mance. These modifications rnsulted in cost ove1rnns beyond the scope of the 
original budget submitted to the State Revolving Fund (SRF). To address this funding gap, the Dish'ict 
will seek a supplemental SRF loan agreement to incorporate the additional $300,000. The Dish'ict is not 
requesting approval of this additional SRF funding by this letter, but this additional SRF funding is 
included in the financial info1mation submitted herewith as descdbed below. 

Secmity for Proposed Financings: 

The proposed indebtedness described herein will be payable solely from and secured by a pledge 
of the net revenues of the Distdct's water system. The punctual payment of principal of and premium, if 
any, and interest on such proposed indebtedness, the Disllict's cU1rently outstanding "parity" 
indebtedness, and any of the Dish'ict's subsequently issued "padty" indebtedness, as applicable, shall be 
seclU'ed equally and ratably by the net revenues of the District's water system without priority by reason 
of series, number, or time of sale or delivery. 

The District deems TI.,DA approval as necessruy and advantageous to serve the public interest, 
preserve the ability to incur future debt on a parity lien basis, and minimize interest and other costs 
payable by System ratepayers. The Dish'ict m1derstands that under applicable State guidelines. all future 
debt of the Dish'ict must be first approved by TLDA as long as SRF indebtedness remains outstanding. 

Matters Related to Audit Filings: 

The Disttict understands that the SRF Loan Agreements listed herein prohibit issuance of 
additional indebtedness in the event of late filings of audited financial statements. The Dish'ict's FY2024 
audited financial statement was filed on Januruy 30, 2025, 29 days after of the due date December 31, 
2024. The District herewith requests TLDA approval of a waiver of Section 7(m)(2), or other associated 
Sections, of the Loan Agreements. 

The Dish'ict requested an explanation for the late filing of the FY2024 audit fi:om Johnson, 
Murphy, & Wright, which began to audit the District commencjng with the FY2024 audit. Please see 
attached hernto a letter from Mr. Paul Johnson which provides such explanation. The piimruy reason for 
the delay was the late filing of the Dish'ict's FY2023 audit. The delay in receipt and filing of the District's 
FY2023 audit is a matter of which the Tennessee Office of the Comptroller of the Treasmy is familiar and 
assisted the DistTict to resolve. 

Timeline Financial Transactions: 

A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds will be utilized to provide matching funding 
for an American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) grant which is required to be funded on or about August 1, 
2025, and the timeline for the closing of the Series 2025 Bonds is scheduled to meet the ARPA grant 
requirements. The Series 2025 BANS a.re being issued to provide interim financing in connection with 

the USDA Bonds and are anticipated to be funded on or about October l, 2025. 

It is impo11ant to note the USDA Bonds will· repay the Series 2025 BANS approximately 24 
months following their issuance date and that both obligations of indebtedness will not be outstanding at 
any time conclmently. Additionally, it is important to note the USDA Bonds wm have an interest rate of 







2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Operating Revenues 6,563,500 6,091,925 5,437,496 5,139,200 4,854,385

Operating Expenses (4,295,419) (4,425,537) (3,772,431) (3,122,348) (3,123,602)

Interest Income 141,146 117,842 10,675 6,515 26,785

Revenues Available for Debt Service 2,409,227 1,784,230 1,675,740 2,023,367 1,757,568

Annual Debt Service 1,718,239 1,674,865 1,256,000 1,245,364 1,245,364

Debt Service Coverage Ratios 1.4021 1.0653 1.3342 1.6247 1.4113

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Operating Revenues 7,250,000 9,062,500 11,328,125 14,160,156 15,576,172

Operating Expenses (4,381,327) (4,600,394) (4,830,413) (5,071,934) (5,325,531)

Interest Income 142,557 149,685 157,170 165,028 173,279

Revenues Available for Debt Service 3,011,230 4,611,792 6,654,881 9,253,250 10,423,921

Annual Debt Service 2,151,563 3,771,873 3,776,787 5,668,915 5,663,258

Debt Service Coverage Ratios 1.3996 1.2227 1.7620 1.6323 1.8406

Assumes Annual Rate Increases 2026-2028 25% | 2029-2031 10% | 2032-2045 5%. Assumes Annual Expense Increases 5% 2026-2045.

THE OCOEE UTILITY DISTRICT OF 
BRADLEY AND POLK COUNTIES, TENNESSEE

SUMMARY OF HISTORICAL AND PROFORMA DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIOS
(FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30)



Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated `
Fiscal 2013 2015 2016 2019 SRF 2019 SRF 2022A 2024 SRF 2024 SRF 2025 USDA USDA 2025
Year Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service DW-2019-210 DW-2019-211 Debt Service DW-2021-242 DW-2021-242-2 USDA DSRF Deposits STLA Deposits Bonds Total DS

2024 433,870 455,550 324,038 46,236 103,992 299,581 54,972 1,718,239
2025 431,685 457,155 322,038 46,236 103,992 604,931 54,972 130,554 2,151,563
2026 10,155 457,745 720,988 46,236 103,992 605,481 54,972 16,750 130,554 1,625,000 3,771,873
2027 457,914 735,638 46,236 103,992 605,731 54,972 16,750 130,554 1,625,000 3,776,787
2028 423,544 734,938 46,236 103,992 605,681 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 130,554 621,708 1,625,000 5,668,915
2029 424,088 729,088 46,236 103,992 605,331 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 130,554 621,708 1,625,000 5,663,258
2030 423,938 733,038 46,236 103,992 604,681 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 130,554 621,708 1,625,000 5,666,408
2031 423,438 731,025 46,236 103,992 604,888 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 130,554 621,708 1,625,000 5,664,102
2032 422,588 733,031 46,236 103,992 605,981 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 130,554 621,708 1,625,000 5,666,352
2033 426,300 729,013 46,236 103,992 605,619 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 130,554 621,708 1,625,000 5,665,683
2034 424,575 733,888 46,236 103,992 603,769 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 130,554 621,708 1,625,000 5,666,983
2035 422,500 732,538 46,236 103,992 601,619 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 5,530,854
2036 424,988 730,006 46,236 103,992 604,094 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 5,533,286
2037 426,950 727,063 46,236 103,992 606,119 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 5,534,329
2038 423,475 733,569 46,236 103,992 602,769 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 5,534,011
2039 425,069 733,575 46,236 103,992 604,044 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 5,536,886
2040 421,744 609,000 46,269 103,992 604,869 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 5,409,844
2041 103,992 605,244 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 4,333,206
2042 69,289 600,244 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 4,293,503
2043 604,794 54,972 16,750 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 4,228,764
2044 603,481 36,654 16,750 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 4,209,133
2045 601,372 16,750 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 4,170,370
2046 598,438 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 4,150,686
2047 599,588 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 4,151,836
2048 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 3,552,248
2049 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 3,552,248
2050 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 3,552,248
2051 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 3,552,248
2052 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 3,552,248
2053 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 3,552,248
2054 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 3,552,248
2055 1,305,540 621,708 1,625,000 3,552,248
2056 1,305,540 621,708 1,927,248
2057 1,305,540 621,708 1,927,248
2058 1,305,540 621,708 1,927,248
2059 1,305,540 621,708 1,927,248
2060 1,305,540 621,708 1,927,248
2061 1,305,540 621,708 1,927,248
2062 1,305,540 621,708 1,927,248
2063 1,305,540 621,708 1,927,248
2064 1,305,540 621,708 1,927,248
2065 1,305,540 621,708 1,927,248

$875,710 $7,341,558 $11,492,469 $786,045 $1,941,145 $14,188,347 $1,136,094 $335,000 $49,610,520 $1,305,540 $23,624,904 $48,750,000 $161,387,331

THE OCOEE UTILITY DISTRICT OF
BRADLEY AND POLK COUNTIES, TENNESSEE
ESTIMATED DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

(FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30)



2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,412,159$          3,553,193$          247,079$             467,748$             807,239$             
Restricted Cash (Current +Non-Current) 266,564 1,464,109 61,331 1,678,400 2,228,941
Accounts/Intergovernmental Receivable/Other 578,604 1,060,137 648,942 619,652 504,585
Inventory 494,959 266,023 453,735 327,106 144,162
Prepaid Expenses 31,942 40,605 35,707 30,710 32,416
Other - 27,529 28,668 117 18,430 

Total Current Assets $3,784,228 6,411,596$          $1,475,462 $3,123,733 $3,735,773
Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and Land Improvements 3,537,729 2,573,331 386,384 386,384 386,384
Utility Plant and Equipment, Net 29,436,109 23,627,436 23,292,656 21,738,252 22,225,818
 Construction in Progress 0 4,113,476 4,358,374 4,559,885 2,628,397
Less:   Accumulated Depreciation 0 0 0 0 0
     Net Utility Plant and Equipment $32,973,838 $30,314,243 $28,037,414 $26,684,521 $25,240,599

Deferred Outflows of Resources
 Bond Defeasance Cost Net 1,069,406 1,157,769 1,246,131 163,985 173,581
 Non-Current Restricted Cash 0 0 9,899,212 1,334,495 1,422,858

Total Other Assets 1,069,406 1,157,769 11,145,343 1,498,480 1,596,439
TOTAL ASSETS+DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 37,827,472$        37,883,608$        40,658,219$        31,306,734$        30,572,811$        

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 238,395 239,717               384,052 624,688 334,677
Accrued Liabilities 113,617 78,032 88,326 59,188 111,585
Accrued Interest 175,885 185,992               197,559 119,094 122,971
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 61,364 59,406 39,037 41,133 42,563
Notes Payable 163,092 115,644               113,940 35,148 0
Bonds Payable 1,115,000 781,507 761,507 765,000 750,000

Total Current Liabilities $1,867,353 $1,460,298 $1,584,421 $1,644,251 $1,361,796
Non-Current Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources 97,684 2,592,251 0 79,696 84,123
Bonds/Notes Payable 26,775,147 24,794,340 27,845,984 18,260,424 18,730,526

Total Long Term Debt $26,872,831 $27,386,591 $27,845,984 $18,340,120 $18,814,649
Total Liabilities 28,740,184$        28,846,889$        29,430,405$        19,984,371$        20,176,445$        

Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets, Net 5,990,005 4,268,924 281,641 9,042,733 7,272,389
Restricted 205,200 211,711 9,899,212 1,623,105 2,139,078
Unrestricted 2,892,083 4,556,084 1,046,981 656,525 984,899

Total Net Position 9,087,288$          9,036,719$          11,227,834$        11,322,363$        10,396,366$        
TOTAL LIABILITIES-NET POSITION 37,827,472$        37,883,608$        40,658,239$        31,306,734$        30,572,811$        

BRADLEY AND POLK COUNTIES, TENNESSEE
HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET CHANGES

(FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30)

THE OCOEE UTILITY DISTRICT OF



2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Operating Income

Charges for Services 5,968,742            5,579,587            4,885,965$          4,622,551$          4,408,617$          

Penalties 91,260                 77,931                 78,226 72,095 75,457

Application and Reconnect Fees 140,738               110,902               95,025 168,875 163,707

Tapping Fees 292,556               255,337               297,832 264,100 178,900

Other Operating Income 70,204                 68,168                 80,448 11,579 27,704

Total Operating Income $6,563,500 $6,091,925 5,437,496 5,139,200 4,854,385

Operating Expenses 4,295,419            4,425,537            3,772,431 3,122,348 3,123,602

Depreciation + Amortization 1,091,273            1,000,921            905,410 893,107 856,882

Total Operating Expenses $5,386,692 $5,426,458 $4,677,841 $4,015,455 $3,980,484

Net Operating Income $1,176,808 $665,467 $759,655 $1,123,745 $873,901

Non Operating Revenue (Expense)

Fixed Asset Net Gain (Loss) (52,739)                (825,499)              506 70,848 1,855

Interest Income 141,146               117,842               10,675 6,515 26,785

Interest Expense (755,719)              (866,222)              (673,223) (600,265) (405,801)

Grants -                           125,808               

Lawsuit Settlement - 29,815                 

Reimbursement Damaged Property -                           2,467                   

Amortization of Bond Discount (88,363)                -                           (278,249) 0 0

     Total Other Income (Expense) ($755,675) ($1,415,789) ($940,291) ($522,902) ($377,161)

Capital Contributions -                           99,673                 86,107$               325,154$             78,136$               

Change in Net Position 421,133               (650,649)              (94,529) 925,997 574,876

Beginning Net Position $8,666,155 $11,227,834 $11,322,363 $10,396,366 $9,821,490

Prior Period Adjustment (1,540,466)

Ending Net Position $9,087,288 $9,036,719 $11,227,834 $11,322,363 $10,396,366

BRADLEY & POLK COUNTIES, TENNESSEE
HISTORICAL SUMMARY OF INCOME STATEMENTS

THE OCOEE UTILITY DISTRICT OF

(FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30)



RESOLUTION 
NO. 2025-001

A RESOLUTION TO PROVIDE FOR ADJUSTMENT AND 
INCREASE OF WATER AND SEWER RATES 

WHEREAS, Ocoee Utility District of Bradley and Polk Counties, 
Tennessee (the “District”) is exclusively authorized to provide water and 
sewer services within the boundaries of its Service Area, which includes 
portions of Bradley and Polk Counties (TN) (the “Service Area”); 

WHEREAS, the District is governed by the laws of the State of Tennessee, 
and has covenanted to comply with the terms of the indebtedness of the 
District (the “Covenants”); 

WHEREAS, to make provision for the stabilization of annual water and 
sewer system revenues in the event of losses of revenues, increases to 
expenses, reductions to annual system usage or payment amounts by certain 
material users, decreased purchasing ability due to the effects of inflation, 
adverse macro or micro economic conditions, make capital improvements 
or purchase capital equipment, and to adhere to annual adjustments to the 
average annual cost of living as calculated by the United States Social 
Security Administration; 

WHEREAS, to make provision for the maintenance and upgrade of the 
District’s underlying credit ratings as assigned by either Standard & Poor’s 
Corporation, Moody’s Investors Service, or Fitch Rating Services; 

WHEREAS, in order to provide for the operationally efficient, legally 
compliant, and credit positive operations of the District’s water and sewer 
systems it is necessary to adjust rates periodically to continue to provide 
those services in accordance with existing laws of the Federal and State of 
Tennessee laws; 



THEREFORE, in accordance with Resolution No. 2025-001 rates 
associated with the water and sewer services of the District shall be 
adjusted periodically and not less than on an annual basis. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of 
Commissioners of the District that the water and sewer rates shall be 
adjusted from time to time to comply with Resolution No. 2025-001 and 
any customer rates previously existing are hereby repealed in their entirety 
and new rates adjusted periodically, and not less than annually, for water 
and sewer services are herewith enacted to provide for system compliance, 
stabilization, credit management, enhanced system efficiency, cleanest 
water possible, and highest levels of customer service for the District. 

Adopted this 27th day of January, 2025.











Resolution No. 2025-002 

AN INIT
I

AL RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO 

EXCEED TWENTY-FIVE Mll,LION DOLLARS ($25,000,000) IN AGGREGATE 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF WATER AND WASTEWATER REVENUE 

IMl1ROVEMENT BONDS, SERfilS 2025 OF THE OCOEE UTILITY DISTRICT 

OF BRADLEY AND POLK COUNTIBS, TENNESSEE; MAKING PROVISION 

FOR THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND PAYMENT OF SAID BON DS;  

ESTABLISHING THE TERMS THEREOF AND THE DISPOSITION OF 

PROCEEDS THEREFROM; AND PROVIDING FOR THE DISPOSITION OF 

REVENUES FROM THE OCOEE UTILITY DISTRICT WATER SYSTEM. 

WHEREAS, the Ocoee Utility District of Bradley and Poll<. Counties, Tennessee, (the 
"District") owns a water and wastewater system (the "System"), which, pursuant to Sections 

7-82-101 et seq., Tennessee Code Annotated, and all amendments thereto, is administered and

operated by the Board of Commissioners of the Ocoee Utility District of Bradley and Polle

Counties, Tennessee (the "Board"); and

WHEREAS, after due investigation and consideration, the Board deems it to be in the 
best interest of the District to issue and sell not to exceed $25,000,000 in aggregate principal 

amount of its Water and Wastewater Revenue Improvement Bonds, Series 2025 (the "Bonds" or 

"Series 2025 Bonds") for the purpose of providing funds to: (i) pay legal, fiscal, administrative, 
and other costs incident thereto and incident to the issuance of the Bonds; and (ii) construct 
certain capital improvements and purchase certain capital equipment for the System as described 

herein; and 

WHEREAS, the maximum rate of interest the Bonds shall bear shall not exceed the lesser 

of seven percent (7. 00%) or the maximum rate permitted by law; and 

WHEREAS, the 2025 Bonds will be payable exclusively from the net revenues of the 

District on parity with the District's now outstanding and hereafter issued parity indebtedness; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board has heretofore retained Kidwell & Company Inc., Nashville, 
Tennessee to act as municipal advisor to the District (the "Municipal Advisor" or "Fiscal 

Agent"). 

NOW, T
H

EREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commissioners of the Ocoee 
Utility District of Bradley and Polk Counties, Tennessee, as follows: 

4908-0)35-2003.2 









Resolution No. 2025-003 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $25,000,000 IN 
AGGREGATE PRINC IPAL AMOUNT OF WATER AND WASTEWATER REVENUE 
IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2025 OF OCOEE UTILITY DISTRICT OF BRADLEY AND 
POLK COUNTIES, TENNESSEE; MAKING PROVISION FOR THE ISSUANCE, SALE, AND 
PAYMENT OF SAID BONDS; ESTABLISHING THE TERMS THEREOF AND THE 
DISPOSITION OF PROCEEDS THEREFROM; PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION AND 
DISPOSITION OF REVENUES FROM THE SYSTEM OF THE DISTRICT; AND MAKING 
PROVISION FOR THE OPERATION OF SAID SYSTEM. 

WHEREAS, Ocoee Utility District of Bradley and Polk Counties, Tennessee (the "District'') is duly 
incorporated 1iursuant to the provisions of the Utility District Law of 1937 (as amended), Tennessee Code Annotated 
§ 7-82-10 I et seq. (the" Act"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the District is authorized to issue bonds and use the proceeds thereof to 
finance the acquisition of utility systems and the construction of improvements and extensions to its utilities systems 
and from time to time to refund the indebtedness of such bonds; and 

Wl-IBREAS, the Governing Body (as hereinafter defined) of the District has determined that it is necessa,y 
and advisable to issue not to exceed $25,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of its Water and Wastewater 
Revenue Improvement Bonds, Series 2025 (the "Bonds" or the "Series 2025 Bonds") for the purpose of funding the 
acquisition, design, permitting, and construction of the Projects (as hereinafter defined), and financing the costs of 
issuance of the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the District owns and operates the System (as hereinafter defined); and 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Governing Body to adopt this resolution for the purpose of 
authorizing the Bonds for the purposes described above; establishing the tenns of the Bonds; and providing for the 
issuance, sale and payment of the Bonds, the disposition of proceeds therefrom, the collection of revenues from the 
System, and the application thereof to the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the District, as follows: 

1. Authority; Purpose· Findings; Parity.

(a) The Bonds authorized by this resolution are issued pursuant to the Act and other applicable
provisions of law. The Governing Body hereby finds and determines that the issuance of the Bonds is necessary and 
advisable for the purpose of funding the acquisition, design, pe1mitting, and construction of the Projects, and 
financing the costs of issuance of the Bonds. 

(b) The Bonds shall constitute "Parity Bonds" under the Prior Resolutions (as hereinafter defined) and
shall likewise be payable at parity with the District's outstanding State Revolving Fund Loans (as hereinafter 
defined). 

2. Definitions. The following tenns shall have the following meanings in this resolution unless the
text expressly or by necessary implication requires otherwise:

"Acquired System" means any water procurement, treatment, storage, or distribution system acquired by 
the District pursuant to the Act or hereafter acquired, constructed or otherwise established by the Distiict pursuant to 
the Act. 

"Act" means, collectively and severally, the Utility Distlict Law of 1937 (as amended), Tennessee Code 
Annotated § 7-82-101 et seq., and all amendments subsequently hereto enacted to such statute. 

"Balloon Indebtedness" means any 'bonds, notes, or other indebtedness of the District, other than Short
Term Indebtedness, 25% or more of the initial principal amount of which matures (or must be redeemed at the 

4899-6104-3775.2 































































Summary:

Ocoee Utility District, Tennessee;
Water/Sewer

Primary Credit Analyst:

Malcolm N D'Silva, Englewood + 1 (303) 721 4526; malcolm.dsilva@spglobal.com

Secondary Contact:

Edward R McGlade, New York + 1 (212) 438 2061; edward.mcglade@spglobal.com

Table Of Contents

Credit Highlights

Outlook

Related Research

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT AUGUST 22, 2024   1



Summary:

Ocoee Utility District, Tennessee; Water/Sewer

Credit Profile

Ocoee Util Dist of Bradley & Polk Cntys WS (BAM)

Unenhanced Rating A+(SPUR)/Negative Outlook Revised

Ocoee Util Dist of Bradley & Polk Cntys WTRSWR

Long Term Rating A+/Negative Outlook Revised

Ocoee Util Dist of Bradley & Polk Cntys WTRSWR

Long Term Rating A+/Negative Outlook Revised

Ocoee Util Dist wtrwks

Long Term Rating A+/Negative Outlook Revised

Many issues are enhanced by bond insurance.

Credit Highlights

• S&P Global Ratings revised its outlook to negative from stable and affirmed its 'A+' rating on Ocoee Utility District,

Tenn.'s existing waterworks revenue bonds and water and wastewater refunding and improvement bonds.

• The outlook revision reflects our view of the utility system's recent increase in operational costs that have reduced

financial margins to narrow levels in the past two fiscal years.

Security

The bonds are secured by a net revenue pledge of district operations. Credit provisions are neutral, in our view.

Credit overview

The rating is underpinned by the district's service-area growth that will improve its financial profile, supported by rate

increases in 2024. The district has ample supply to meet demand but requires upgrades due to growth and aging

infrastructure. In recent years, the district has dealt with the degradation of some of the water pipes within its system,

which have been replaced as they failed, pushing operating expenses up and leading to a fluctuating adjusted coverage

and liquidity position. Management used the proceeds from the series 2022 bonds and grant monies to correct liquidity

issues and to prepurchase the replacement pipes upfront to avoid increases in supplies in the near term. With the debt

restructuring and recent rate increases, management anticipates that coverage will return to historical levels. The

rating is also influenced by the recently approved rate plan and growth in the service area that will enhance service

charges and revenue trends in the future.

In our view, the key risks to the district's credit quality focus on its ability to manage customer growth and meet

infrastructure-improvement objectives for planned capital projects. In our view, rising cost-of-service expenses also

remain persistent risks. In recent years, expenses grew due to high cost of water purchases. However, capital plans

currently focus on pipe replacement and doubling capacity at the Wildwood Springs and Old Parksville water

treatment plants that will reduce water purchase costs and accommodate future growth. Management indicated that

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT AUGUST 22, 2024   2



treatment plant improvements will be funded primarily through partnerships with the U.S. Department of Agriculture's

(USDA) Rural Development. We believe management's success in securing grants from USDA Rural Development

programs help temper risks from implementing a moderately sized capital improvement program (CIP).

Other rating factors include the district's:

• Diverse and steadily growing customer base that participates in the Cleveland metropolitan statistical area (MSA),

with adequate income levels;

• Competitive water and sewer rates providing the utility's additional revenue-raising flexibility;

• Good operational management, with more than sufficient treatment capacity, and credit-supportive automatic

annual rate adjustments;

• All-in coverage metrics and liquidity position, which are expected to improve with the recent rate increases; and

• Standard financial management practices and policies.

Environmental, social, and governance

We analyzed the district's environmental, social, and governance (ESG) factors relative to its enterprise and financial

risk profiles and view these risks as neutral in our credit rating analysis. Although the district does not maintain formal

drought or flooding contingency planning, the service area does not face high risk and management has mitigated any

future effects through secured emergency capacity at neighboring water plants. The systems have built-in

redundancies and backup generators in case of tornadoes. We do not consider social risks as significantly elevated, as

incomes are adequate compared with the national average and rates are considered affordable. In addition, we believe

governance factors are firmed by the recent credit-supportive rate plan.

Outlook

The negative outlook reflects our view that there is a one-in-three chance that rising fixed costs could result in

diminished financial capacity that would no longer be consistent with the current rating.

Downside scenario

We anticipate that management will continue to adjust rates as necessary to meet future capital needs and sustain

liquidity at current, moderate levels. We could lower the rating if coverage and liquidity reserves show similar volatility

as seen in recent years or significantly decline, despite rate adjustments.

Upside scenario

We could raise the rating in the long-term, if the district's economic profile significantly strengthens, as demonstrated

by rising incomes while maintaining financial metrics at a level that we consider sustainable as it progresses through its

CIP. We anticipate that ongoing growth shares in the cost of related capital investments, and we expect that the

district will adjust its rate plans to consider actual service-area growth and service demands.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT AUGUST 22, 2024   3

Summary: Ocoee Utility District, Tennessee; Water/Sewer



Ocoee Utility District, Tenn.--Economic and financial data

Fiscal year-end

Most recent 2023 2022 2021 Median (A)

Economic data

Water customers 8,099 4,745

MHHEBI of the service area as % of the U.S. 85.0 82.0

Unemployment rate (%) 3.5 4.0

Poverty rate (%) 13.1 12.7

Water rate (6,000 gallons or actual) ($) 64.8 42.0

Sewer rate (6,000 gallons or actual) ($) 63.2 42.0

Annual utility bill as % of MHHEBI 2.8 1.4

Operational Management Assessment Good Standard

Financial data

Gross revenues ($000s) 5,852 5,118 5,043 4,623

Total operating expenses less depreciation ($000s) 5,146 3,772 3,121 2,891

Net revenues available for debt service ($000s) 1,190 1,750 2,292 --

Debt service ($000s) 1,664 1,278 1,245 --

S&P Global Ratings-adjusted all-in DSC (x) 0.7 1.4 1.8 1.6

Unrestricted cash ($000s) 3,553 247 468 3,095

Days' cash of operating expenses 252 24 55 409

Total on-balance-sheet debt ($000s) 28,284 28,722 19,060 10,166

Debt-to-capitalization ratio (%) 74.1 71.9 62.7 43.8

Financial Management Assessment Standard -- -- -- Standard

Most recent economic data available from our vendors. MHHEBI--Median household effective buying income. DSC--Debt service coverage.

Related Research

Through The ESG Lens 3.0: The Intersection Of ESG Credit Factors And U.S. Public Finance Credit Factors, March 2,

2022

Certain terms used in this report, particularly certain adjectives used to express our view on rating relevant factors, have specific meanings ascribed

to them in our criteria, and should therefore be read in conjunction with such criteria. Please see Ratings Criteria at www.spglobal.com/ratings for

further information. Complete ratings information is available to RatingsDirect subscribers at www.capitaliq.com. All ratings affected by this rating

action can be found on S&P Global Ratings' public website at www.spglobal.com/ratings.

WWW.STANDARDANDPOORS.COM/RATINGSDIRECT AUGUST 22, 2024   4

Summary: Ocoee Utility District, Tennessee; Water/Sewer



Kidwell & Company 
132 Hampton Place 
Nashville, TN 37215 

May 16, 2025 

Dear Larry: 

The June 30, 2023 audit for Ocoee l Jtility District wlls prepared hy another finn. 
It was not completed until October 1, 2024 (16 months). This delayed the start of our 
audit for June 30, 2024 until November 18, 2024. After we started, they had their 
completed audit report on January 16, 2025 (2 months). The Tennessee Comptroller's 
office confirmed receipt of the report on January 30, 2025. 

The June 30, 2025 audit is scheduled for August 6th and 71\ and the report should 
be released before October 31, 2025. 

Paul Johnson, III, CP resident 
Johnson, Murphey & Wright, P.C. 









 

 

 

  

Tennessee Local Development Authority 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Debt Management Policy 
 

 

Prepared by: 

Division of State Government Finance 



 

 

Table of Contents 
Debt Management Policy .......................................... 1 

Introduction ................................................................... 1 

Purpose ........................................................................... 1 

Goals and Objectives .................................................. 2 

A. Policy Goals .................................................... 2 

B. Policy Objectives.......................................... 2 

Debt Management/General ....................................... 2 

A. Purpose and Use of Debt Issuance ....... 2 

B. Debt Service Coverage .............................. 3 

C. Federal Tax Status ...................................... 3 

D. Legal Limitations on the Use of Debt .. 3 

E. Security............................................................ 3 

Types of Debt ............................................................... 4 

A. Long-Term Debt/Bonds ........................... 4 

B. Short-Term Debt.......................................... 4 

Debt Structure ............................................................... 4 

A. Term ................................................................. 4 

B. Debt Service Structure .............................. 5 

C. Call Provisions .............................................. 5 

D. Tender Offer/Option Bonds .................... 5 

E. Original Issuance Discount/Premium 5 

F. Redemption Provisions ............................ 5 

Refunding Outstanding Debt ................................... 6 

A. Refunding Considerations ....................... 6 

B. Term of Refunding Issues ........................ 6 

C. Escrow Structuring ..................................... 7 

D. Arbitrage ......................................................... 7 

Methods of Sale ........................................................... 7 

A. Competitive ................................................... 7 

B. Negotiated ...................................................... 7 

C. Private Placement ....................................... 7 

Selection of Underwriting Team (Negotiated 

Transaction) ................................................................... 8 

A. Senior Manager ............................................ 8 

B. Co-Managers ................................................. 8 

C. Selling Groups ............................................... 8 

D. Underwriter’s Counsel .............................. 8 

Credit Quality ................................................................ 9 

Credit Enhancements .................................................. 9 

A. Bond Insurance ............................................ 9 

B. Letters of Credit ........................................... 9 

C. Liquidity ....................................................... 10 

D. Use of Structured Products ................... 10 

Risk Assessment ........................................................ 10 

A. Private Business Use ............................... 10 

B. Default Risk ................................................. 10 

C. Liquidity Risk ............................................. 10 

D. Interest Rate Risk ..................................... 10 

E. Rollover Risk .............................................. 11 

F. Market Risk ................................................. 11 

Transparency .............................................................. 11 

Professional Services ............................................... 11 

A. Issuer’s Counsel ......................................... 11 

B. Bond Counsel .............................................. 11 

C. Financial Advisor ...................................... 11 

D. Dealer or Remarketing Agent .............. 12 

E. Issuing and Paying Agent ...................... 12 

F. Credit/Liquidity Provider ..................... 12 

G. Refunding Trustee .................................... 12 

H. Verification Agent ..................................... 12 

I. Escrow Bidding Agent ............................ 12 

Potential Conflicts of Interest ............................... 12 

Debt Administration ................................................. 13 

A. Planning for Sale ....................................... 13 

B. Preparing for Bond Closing .................. 13 

Federal Regulatory Compliance and Continuing 

Disclosure .................................................................... 14 

A. Arbitrage ...................................................... 14 

B. Investment of Proceeds ......................... 14 

C. Disclosure .................................................... 14 

D. Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) ............................................... 15 



Review of the Policy ............................................... 15 

Adoption of the Policy ............................................ 16 

APPENDIX A ............................................................ 17 



 

1 

 

Debt Management Policy 

Introduction  

In 1978, the Tennessee General Assembly (the “General Assembly”) created the Tennessee Local 

Development Authority (the “Authority”) pursuant to Sections 4-31-101 et seq., Tennessee Code Annotated 

(Tenn. Code Ann.). The Authority is a corporate governmental agency and instrumentality of the State of 

Tennessee (the “State”). The Authority is comprised of the Governor, the Secretary of the State, the State 

Comptroller of the Treasury, the State Treasurer, the Commissioner of Finance and Administration, a 

Senate appointee, and a House appointee. The Division of State Government Finance (SGF) serves as staff 

to and performs certain duties and functions for and at the direction of the Authority. SGF is responsible 

for managing the debt of the State, including the issuance of all bonds and notes and the repayment of such 

debt. The Director of SGF serves as the Assistant Secretary to the Authority.  

The Authority is authorized to issue debt to (1) loan funds to local governments for sewage treatment and 

waterworks facilities (the “State Loan Programs”), energy recovery facilities and solid waste resource 

recovery, capital projects, firefighting equipment, and airport facilities; (2) loan funds to certain small 

business concerns for pollution control equipment; (3) make funds available for loans for agricultural 

enterprises; (4) make loans to not-for-profit organizations providing certain mental health, mental 

retardation, and alcohol and drug services; (5) make loans to local government units to finance construction 

of capital outlay projects for K-12 educational facilities; (6) make payment on covered claims against 

insurers operating in this state which have been deemed insolvent as the result of a natural disaster; and 

(vii) make the proceeds available to petroleum underground storage tank board for purposes of providing 

for the reimbursement of reasonable and safe cleanup of petroleum sites. The aggregate amounts 

outstanding for certain programs are limited as follows: $10,000,000 for firefighting equipment; 

$200,000,000 for airport facilities; $50,000,000 for pollution control equipment; $50,000,000 for mental 

health, and alcohol and drug services; $30,000,000 for agricultural enterprises; $15,000,000 for petroleum 

underground storage tank cleanup costs; and $75,000,000 for capital outlay projects for K-12 educational 

facilities.  

The Authority has only issued debt pursuant to the provisions of the TLDA State Loan Programs General 

Bond Resolution (the “Resolution”) adopted by the Authority on August 3, 1982, as amended, and 

supplemented and restated and readopted on March 14, 1985, and as amended on May 17, 1989.  This 

policy applies only to that program. The TLDA has oversight for the State Revolving Fund and State 

Infrastructure loan programs; however, since debt is not issued for these programs, they are not included in 

this policy. 

Purpose 

A debt management policy is established to provide written guidance for a government regarding: the 

amount and type of debt that may be issued, the debt issuance process, management of the debt portfolio, 

the investment of bond proceeds, and compliance with regulatory authorities. A debt management policy 

tailored to the needs of the Authority: (1) identifies policy goals and demonstrates a commitment to long-

term financial planning; (2) assists the Authority in its decisions concerning debt issuance; and (3) provides 

justification for the issuance and structure of the debt. The Authority’s compliance with its debt 

management policy indicates to the rating agencies and the capital markets that the Authority is well-

managed with the ability to meet its obligations in a timely manner. 

Annual costs related to debt are important financial considerations that impact the use of current resources. 

An effective debt management policy provides guidelines for the Authority to manage its debt program in 

line with those resources. 



 

2 

 

Goals and Objectives 

The Authority has established this Debt Management Policy (the “Policy”) as a tool to ensure that financial 

resources are sufficient to fulfill the Authority’s long-term capital plan.  In addition, the Policy helps to 

ensure that financings undertaken by the Authority satisfy certain clear objective standards designed to 

protect the Authority’s financial resources and to meet its long-term capital needs. 

A. Policy Goals 

• To document responsibility for the oversight and management of debt related transactions 

• To define the types of debt approved for use within the constraints established by the 

General Assembly 

• To define and establish the criteria for the issuance of debt 

• To define the appropriate uses of debt 

• To define and establish the criteria for the refunding of debt or the use of alternative debt 

structures  

• To establish certain parameters to minimize the cost of issuing and servicing debt 

B. Policy Objectives 

• To establish clear criteria and promote prudent financial management for the issuance of 

all debt obligations 

• To identify legal, financial, and administrative limitations on the issuance of debt 

• To ensure appropriate legal use of the Authority’s debt issuance authority 

• To ensure the Authority maintains appropriate resources and funding capacity for present 

and future capital needs 

• To protect and enhance the Authority’s credit rating 

• To evaluate and consider all possible debt issuance options 

• To create and maintain transparency throughout the debt issuance and management process 

• To promote cooperation and coordination with other stakeholders in the financing and 

delivery of services 

• To manage interest rate exposure and other risks 

• To comply with federal regulations, laws of the State, and generally accepted accounting 

principles (GAAP) 

Debt Management/General 

A. Purpose and Use of Debt Issuance 

• Debt is to be issued pursuant to the authority of and in full compliance with, provisions, 

restrictions, and limitations of the Constitution and laws of the State (including Tenn. Code 

Ann. §§ 4-31-101, et seq., §§ 68-221-201 et seq., and §§ 68-221-501,et seq.), pursuant to 

an authorizing resolution adopted by the Authority (Resolution). 

• The Authority may issue debt to fund loans to local government units to pay costs of 

construction, acquisition, and improvement for sewage treatment works, waterworks, and 

energy recovery facilities and/or solid waste resource recovery facilities. 



 

3 

 

• In compliance with Article II, Section 24 of the Tennessee Constitution, debt may only be 

used to fund operating expenditures when such debt is repaid in the fiscal year issued; 

however, it is not the State’s practice to issue debt to fund operating expenditures. 

• Prior to the issuance of bonds, bond anticipation notes may be issued for project costs as 

authorized by the bond authorization and a supplemental resolution of the Authority.   

• Bonds may be issued to refund outstanding debt. 

B. Debt Service Coverage 

The dollar amount of debt that the Authority may issue and that may be outstanding for the State 

Loan Programs is not limited by statute; however, debt issued for this program shall be “limited 

special obligations” of the Authority payable solely from and secured by payments made by local 

government units, or state-shared taxes withheld, pursuant to loan program agreements.  

C. Federal Tax Status 

• Tax-Exempt Debt - The Authority will use its best efforts to maximize the amount of debt 

sold as tax-exempt based on the following assumptions: 

▪ that tax-exempt interest rates are lower than taxable rates; and 

▪ that the interest savings outweigh the administrative costs, restrictions on use of 

financed projects, and constraints on investment of debt proceeds. 

• Taxable Debt - The Authority will sell taxable debt when necessary to finance projects 

not eligible to be financed with tax-exempt debt. However, the Authority may finance 

taxable projects within the permitted limits of tax-exempt financings whenever possible. 

D. Legal Limitations on the Use of Debt 

• The proceeds of any debt obligation shall be expended only for the purpose for which it 

was authorized and applied to fund loan program agreements only when the ratio of 

unobligated state-shared taxes to maximum annual debt service complies with state 

statutes, including any pledge of the statutory reserve fund. 

• Notes may be issued only when the Comptroller has filed a certificate as required by 

Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-31-108(f), including the certification that loan program agreements 

are in place that will utilize at least 75% of the note proceeds. 

• No debt may be issued for a term that is longer than the useful life of the capital project 

that is funded. 

E. Security 

• The Authority’s debt is payable from, and secured by, all income, fees, charges, receipts, 

earnings, and other moneys derived by the Authority in connection with the financing of 

the State Loan Programs by the Authority (the “Revenues”). Revenues as defined in the 

Resolution include:  

i. all payments made by local government units under a loan program agreement,  

ii. the earnings on the income derived from the investment of the proceeds of bonds 

and notes and any other moneys held by the Authority under the Resolution,  

iii. state-shared taxes, and  

iv. amounts held in the statutory reserve fund.  



4 

• The Authority’s rights and interest in the loan program agreements and all moneys held

under the Resolution are also pledged, assigned, and charged as additional security for the

payment of principal and interest and premium, if any, on the debt.

• Debt issued under the Resolution shall be limited special obligations of the Authority

payable on a parity as to principal, interest and premium, if any, with other debt issued

under the Resolution.

Types of Debt

A. Long-Term Debt/Bonds

• Fixed Interest Rate Bonds – Bonds that have an interest rate that remains constant

throughout the life of the bond, i.e., serial bonds and term bonds.

• Variable Interest Rate Bonds – Bonds that bear interest at a variable or floating rate,

adjusted at specified intervals (daily, weekly, or monthly) according to a specific index.

• Capital Appreciation Bonds – Bonds that are structured where interest on principal

accrues and compounds until maturity. At maturity, the full amount of the principal and all

interest accrued is repaid.

B. Short-Term Debt

The Authority may issue short-term debt from time to time as needed to fund loans for projects

during the project construction period. Such debt shall be authorized by resolution of the Authority.

Short-term debt is subsequently repaid with proceeds from the sale of long-term debt. Short-term

debt may include:

• Bond Anticipation Notes (BANs) – BANs are short-term interest-bearing securities

generally issued to finance capital project expenditures during construction in anticipation

of permanent financing through the issuance of long-term debt.

• Commercial Paper (CP) – CP is a BAN that may be issued with a term of up to 270 days;

and at maturity may be reissued to a future maturity date. It can be issued incrementally as

funds are needed.

• Fixed Rate Notes – Notes issued for a period of five years or less with an interest rate that

is fixed.

• Variable Rate Notes – Notes issued for a period of five years or less that bear interest at

a variable or floating rate, adjusted at specified intervals (daily, weekly, or monthly)

according to a specific index.

• Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) – A form of credit issued by a financial institution that

provides the ability to draw on and repay during the term of the facility. The incremental

drawdowns may bear interest until repaid.

Debt Structure

The Authority shall establish by resolution all terms and conditions relating to the issuance of debt and will 

invest all proceeds pursuant to the terms of the Authority’s Resolution and the State’s investment policy.  

A. Term

The term of any debt (including refunding debt) used to purchase or otherwise obtain or construct

any equipment, goods, or structures shall have a reasonably anticipated lifetime of use equal to or

less than the average useful life of the project. The final maturity of the debt should be limited to



 

5 

 

thirty (30) years after the date of issuance or the date the project is deemed complete or placed in 

service, whichever is earlier.  

The final maturity of notes and any renewals is limited to eight years from the date of issue of the 

original notes unless the Authority has begun repayment of principal and the ultimate maturity of 

the notes will not exceed thirty (30) years from the date of first issuance or the date the project is 

deemed complete or placed in service, whichever is earlier. 

B. Debt Service Structure 

New money debt issuance will be issued with relatively net level debt service over the life of the 

debt.  The Authority will avoid use of bullet or balloon maturities; this does not include term 

bonds with mandatory sinking fund requirements or capital appreciation bonds. 

C. Call Provisions 

When issuing new debt, the structure may include a call provision that occurs no later than ten 

years from the date of delivery of the bonds.  Call provisions should be structured to provide the 

maximum flexibility relative to cost. The Authority will avoid the sale of long-term non-callable 

bonds absent careful evaluation by the SGF and consultation with the financial advisor (the 

“Financial Advisor”) with respect to the value of the call option. 

D. Tender Offer/Option Bonds 

The Authority may issue tender option bonds to retire all or a portion of certain outstanding bonds 

by making an offer to repurchase the bonds from its bondholders at a specified price during a set 

period of time.  Note that from a bond holder’s perspective, the only material difference between a 

called and tendered bond is that with the tender offer, the bond holder must elect to accept the 

repurchase offer. If the tender offer is not accepted, the bond’s terms (including scheduled maturity 

date) remain unchanged. 

E. Original Issuance Discount/Premium 

Bonds sold with original issuance discount/premium are permitted with the approval of the 

Authority. 

F. Redemption Provisions  

The Authority may redeem bonds in accordance with its redemption provision in its Resolution. 

• Optional Redemption  

Bonds may be redeemed at the option of the Authority prior to their respective stated 

maturities. 

• Mandatory Redemption 

The Authority may issue bonds that are subject to mandatory redemption with a call 

provision that would require the Authority to redeem the bonds prior to their stated maturity 

date. 

• Sinking Fund Redemption 

The Authority may issue bonds that are subject to a sinking fund redemption that allows 

the Authority to call or redeem portions of its term bonds prior to their stated maturities 

with funds that have been set aside in a sinking fund for that purpose. 

• Extraordinary Redemption 

The Authority may issue bonds that are subject to an extraordinary redemption provision 

that gives the Authority the right to call or redeem its bonds due to an unusual, one-time 

event.  



 

6 

 

Refunding Outstanding Debt 

The Authority may refund (or refinance) outstanding bonds by issuing new bonds of which the proceeds 

are used to repay the refunded bonds.  The Authority’s staff with assistance from the Authority’s 

Financial Advisor will have the responsibility to analyze outstanding bond issues for refunding 

opportunities. The Financial Advisor will conduct an analysis to identify all refunding candidates at least 

semi-annually.  

A. Refunding Considerations 

• Advance Refunding - An advance refunding may be considered when the refunding results 

generate a present value savings of at least 4% per series of refunded bonds.  Consideration 

will be given to escrow efficiency when reviewing refunding candidates. Current tax law 

only allows taxable advance refunding transactions.   

• Current Refunding - A current refunding will be considered when the refunding (1) 

results in aggregate present value savings of at least 2% per series of refunded bonds or (2) 

present value savings per series that is equal to or greater than twice the cost of issuance 

allocable to the refunding series. 

• Refunding for Other Purposes - Bonds may be refunded if  necessary (1) due to a change 

in the use of a project that would require a change to the tax status of the bonds, (2) because 

the project is sold or no longer in service while still in its amortization period, or (3) because 

the restrictive covenants prevent the issuance of other debt or create other restrictions on 

the financial management of the project and revenue producing activities. 

• Present Value Savings Calculation - Unless otherwise agreed upon by SGF and the 

Financial Advisor, the present value savings shall be calculated for each series of refunding 

bonds (whether or not issued at the same time) by comparing the debt service on the 

refunding bonds to the remaining debt service on the bonds to be refunded thereby, present 

valued to the issue of such refunding bonds at a discount rate equal to arbitrage yield on 

such refunding bonds calculated (whether for tax-exempt bonds or taxable bonds) in the 

same manner as arbitrage yield is calculated for federally tax-exempt bonds; provided, 

however, if a series of bonds is being used for the purpose of refunding bonds to be 

refunded and for other purposes the discount rate is equal to the arbitrage yield of the series 

of bonds. Percentage present value savings shall be expressed as a percentage of the par 

amount of such bonds to be refunded.  

• Escrow Efficiency - Escrow efficiency is determined by dividing the present value savings 

by the perfect escrow cost. The perfect escrow cost for a net funded escrow is the net 

present value of the escrow requirements (plus the additional cash deposit on the final 

requirement date) discounted at the arbitrage yield to the escrow purchase date. For a gross-

funded escrow, the perfect escrow cost is the sum of the escrow requirements.   

After consultation with the Financial Advisor, the Comptroller may waive the foregoing refunding 

considerations given that the sale of refunding bonds will still accomplish cost savings to the public.  

Such waiver shall be reported in writing to the Authority at its next meeting. 

B. Term of Refunding Issues 

The final maturity of the refunding escrows will not extend beyond the fiscal year of the maturity 

of the originally issued debt. No backloading of debt will be permitted.  



 

7 

 

C. Escrow Structuring 

The Authority will structure refunding escrows using legally permitted securities deemed to be 

prudent under the circumstances and will seek to utilize the least costly securities unless 

considerations of risk, reliability and convenience dictate otherwise.  The Authority will take 

competitive bids on any selected portfolio of securities and will award to the lowest cost provider 

giving due regard to considerations of risk and reliability or unless State and Local Government 

Series securities (SLGS) are purchased directly from the federal government.  The provider must 

guarantee the delivery of securities except for SLGS.  Under no circumstances shall an underwriter, 

agent, or financial advisor sell escrow securities to the Authority from its own account. 

D. Arbitrage 

The Authority shall seek to optimize efficiency on refunding escrows and to avoid negative 

arbitrage in its refunding subject to Tenn. Code Ann. § 4-31-104(6).  Any positive arbitrage will be 

rebated in accordance with federal guidelines (see also “Federal Regulatory Compliance and 

Continuing Disclosure – A. Arbitrage”). 

Methods of Sale 

A. Competitive  

In a competitive sale, the Authority’s bonds are posted for auction sale and awarded to the bidder 

providing the lowest true interest cost as long as the bid conforms to the requirements set forth in 

the official notice of sale.  A competitive sale is the Authority’s preferred method of sale.   

B. Negotiated  

While the Authority prefers to sell it bonds through a competitive sale, it recognizes that there are 

situations when it is best to negotiate the sale of its bonds.  The underwriting team will be selected, 

and the underwriter’s fees negotiated prior to the sale.  See section below titled “Selection of 

Underwriting Team (Negotiated Transaction).”  The Authority will consider the following factors 

in determining whether to conduct a negotiated sale: 

• The bond structure which may require a pre-marketing effort; 

i. Fixed or variable rate bonds 

ii. Taxable or tax-exempt bonds 

iii. New money or refunding bonds 

• Volatility in market conditions may require flexibility in the timing of the sale; 

• Size of the bond sale which may limit the number of potential purchasers; 

• Legal or disclosure issues make it advisable in marketing the bonds; and/or 

• Credit strength.   

C. Private Placement 

The Authority may consider privately placing its bonds in certain situations, such as:   

• The small amount of bonds to be sold does not warrant public sale; 

• The structure is complicated for a public debt issuance; 

• The number of potential purchasers is limited; and/or 

• The private placement results in a cost savings to the Authority in comparison to other 

methods of debt issuance.  



8 

Selection of Underwriting Team (Negotiated Transaction)

The primary role of the underwriter and underwriting team in a negotiated bond sale is to market the State’s 

bonds to investors.  Underwriters often provide ideas and suggestions with respect to structure, timing, and 

marketing process for the bonds being sold.  The underwriters also work with the State’s Financial Advisor 

and financing team in the bond rating process.  The roles of the underwriter and the Financial Advisor are 

separate, adversarial roles that cannot be provided by the same party. The Authority shall require an 

underwriter to clearly identify itself in writing, whether in response to a request for proposals (RFP) or 

in promotional materials provided to the Authority or otherwise, as an underwriter and not as a financial 

advisor from the earliest stages of its relationship with the Authority with respect to the Authority’s 

bonds to be sold. The underwriter must clarify its primary role as a purchaser of securities in an arms-

length negotiation and that it has financial and other interests that differ from those of the Authority. The 

underwriter in a publicly offered, negotiated sale shall be required to provide pricing information both as 

to interest rates and to takedown per bond maturity to the Authority or its designated official in advance 

of the pricing of the debt. 

A. Senior Manager

The Authority, with assistance from its staff and Financial Advisor, shall select the senior

manager(s) for a proposed negotiated sale.  The selection criteria shall include but not be limited to

the following:

• Experience in selling Tennessee debt;

• Ability and experience in managing complex transactions;

• Prior knowledge and experience with the Authority;

• Willingness to risk capital and demonstration of such risk;

• Quality and experience of personnel assigned to the Authority’s transaction;

• Financing ideas presented; and

• Competitive underwriting fees.

B. Co-Managers

Co-managers may be selected based on the same criteria as the Senior Manager.  The number of co-

managers appointed to a specific transaction may be dependent upon the transaction size to ensure

maximum distribution of the Authority’s bonds.  The Secretary or Assistant Secretary to the

Authority will, at his or her discretion, affirmatively determine the designation policy for each bond

issue.

C. Selling Groups

The Authority may use selling groups in its bond sales to maximize the distribution of bonds to retail

investors.  Firms eligible to be a member of the selling group should either have a public finance

department or pricing desk located within the boundaries of the State. To the extent that selling

groups are included in the transaction, the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Authority, at his

or her discretion, may appoint new members to the selling group as the transaction dictates.

D. Underwriter’s Counsel

In any negotiated sale of the Authority’s debt in which legal counsel is required to represent the

underwriter, the appointment will be made by the Senior Manager.



 

9 

 

Credit Quality 

The Authority will seek to achieve the highest credit ratings possible, consistent with the Authority’s 

financing objectives. If the Authority’s ratings are downgraded, the Authority will immediately review its 

capital funding and debt strategy and take necessary steps within its authority to avoid additional 

downgrades and restore its rating. If the downgrade is a result of a criteria change, SGF will work with the 

credit rating agencies to understand the implications of the criteria and provide a summary to the Authority.  

SGF will be responsible for maintaining relationships and communicating with the rating agencies that 

assign ratings to the Authority’s debt.  SGF will schedule rating agency calls and/or visits prior to the 

issuance of Authority debt. 

SGF will provide the rating agencies with periodic updates of the general financial condition of the 

Authority.  Full disclosure of operations and open lines of communication shall be maintained with the 

rating agencies.  The Authority, together with the Financial Advisor, shall prepare presentations to the rating 

agencies to assist credit analysts in making an informed decision.  

The Authority through SGF will engage the relevant rating agencies in advance, in the event that the 

Authority decides to move forward with a plan of finance that includes variable rate debt, new commercial 

paper programs or the use of derivatives. 

The Authority shall apply for ratings from at least two of the four credit rating agencies.  The Authority 

shall fully review the contract with the rating agencies and receive an engagement letter with each respective 

agency prior to submitting documentation for the rating. 

Credit Enhancements 

The Authority may consider the use of credit enhancements on a case-by-case basis, evaluating the 

economic benefit versus the cost.  The Authority may determine that a credit enhancement is necessary to 

sell debt in the capital market. In other cases, there may be an economic benefit to securing credit 

enhancement; however, cost savings would need to be demonstrated.  SGF may consider the following 

enhancements while evaluating the cost and benefit of such enhancements: 

A. Bond Insurance 

The Authority may purchase bond insurance when it is deemed prudent and advantageous by the 

Office of the Comptroller of the Treasury through SGF. The primary consideration shall be based 

on whether the insurance is less costly than the present value of the difference between the interest 

cost on insured bonds versus uninsured bonds.  For competitive sales, the purchaser of the bonds 

may be allowed to determine whether bond insurance will be used. The purchaser will include the 

cost of the bond insurance (to be paid by the purchaser) in its bid for the bonds. If SGF decides to 

purchase insurance, it shall do so on a competitive bid basis whenever practicable. In a negotiated 

sale, SGF will select a provider whose bid is most cost effective and will consider the credit quality 

of the insurer with terms and conditions governing the guarantee that are satisfactory to the 

Authority.   

B. Letters of Credit 

The Authority may enter into a letter-of-credit (LOC) agreement if such an agreement is deemed 

prudent and advantageous.  SGF will prepare and distribute an RFP to qualified banks or other 

qualified financial institutions that include terms and conditions that are acceptable to the 

Authority.  The LOC will be awarded to the bank or financial institution providing the highest 

credit quality that provides a proposal with the lowest cost that meets the criteria established by the 

Authority. 



 

10 

 

C. Liquidity  

For variable rate debt that requires a liquidity facility to mitigate remarketing risk, the Authority 

will evaluate: 

• The cost of alternative forms of liquidity, including direct pay letters of credit, standby 

letters of credit, and lines of credit, in comparison to the cost of the inability to issue debt 

due to an illiquid market; 

• Whether the facility needs to be diversified among liquidity providers, to limit credit 

exposure to any individual liquidity provider; 

• All cost components attributed to the liquidity facility, including commitment fees, standby 

fees, draw fees, and interest expense on amounts drawn on the facility; and 

• A comparative analysis and evaluation of the cost of external liquidity providers compared 

to the cost for self-liquidity. 

The winning bid will be awarded to the bank or financial institution with the highest credit quality 

that provides a proposal with the lowest cost that meets the criteria established by the Authority. 

D. Use of Structured Products 

No interest rate agreements or forward purchase agreements will be considered unless the Authority 

has established a policy defining the use of such products before the transaction is considered. 

Risk Assessment 

SGF will evaluate each transaction to assess the types and amounts of risk associated with that transaction 

and consider all available means to address and mitigate the risks. SGF will evaluate all proposed 

transactions for consistency with the objectives and constraints defined in this Policy.  The following risks 

should be assessed before issuing debt: 

A. Private Business Use  

Private business use of a project or facility that is financed with tax-exempt bonds may cause the 

interest on the tax-exempt bonds to be taxable to the owner of the bonds. 

B. Default Risk 

• Payment (monetary) default risk - the risk that debt service payments due from the 

borrowers are not received by the due date. 

• Technical default risk - the risk that the Authority fails to comply with the covenants or 

conditions (non-financial terms) of its debt obligations. 

C. Liquidity Risk 

The risk that an illiquid capital market would impede the Authority’s ability to issue or remarket 

debt along with the risk of having to pay a higher interest rate to the liquidity provider in the 

event of a failed remarketing of short-term debt. 

D. Interest Rate Risk 

The risk that market interest rates change based on conditions which are outside the control of the 

State. Debt with variable rates could be subject to interest rate volatility and based on market 

conditions rates could be higher than estimated. Debt that includes a requirement to be refinanced 

could be subject to higher interest rates in the future resulting in higher interest costs.   



 

11 

 

E. Rollover Risk 

The risk of refinancing debt with the rate of interest on the new debt being greater than the original 

rate of interest. 

F. Market Risk 

Risk that may arise due to changes in the municipal or other financial markets, geopolitical events, 

or recessions that could result in the inability to access the financial markets or borrowing in 

financial markets that could result in higher than expected interest rates. 

Transparency 

The Authority shall comply with the Tennessee Open Meetings Act and provide adequate notice of public 

meetings. The Authority shall specify on the agenda any matters related to debt issuance that are to be 

considered. All costs related to debt issuance, recurring and non-recurring, (including bond interest and 

costs of issuance) shall be disclosed to the general public in a timely manner.  Additionally, in accordance 

with the Authority’s Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (CDU), the Authority will provide certain 

financial information and operating data by specified dates and provide notice of certain enumerated events 

with respect to the bonds, pursuant to continuing disclosure requirements of the U.S. Securities and 

Exchange Commission (SEC) Rule 15c2-12.  The Authority intends to maintain transparency by: 

• Posting the Official Statement of a bond sale to the Authority’s website within two weeks of 

the closing of the sale;  

• Filing the Debt Report with the Authority not later than forty-five days following the issuance 

or execution of a debt obligation, with a copy filed with the Division of Local Government 

Finance (LGF) pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-134; and 

• Electronically submitting information necessary to satisfy the Authority’s continuing 

disclosure requirements for the bonds through the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 

Board’s Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) website in a timely manner (see 

“Federal Regulatory Compliance and Continuing Disclosure”). 

Professional Services 

The Authority requires all professionals engaged in assisting in the Authority’s debt issuance transactions 

to clearly disclose all compensation and consideration received related to services provided in the “soft” 

costs or compensation in lieu of direct payments.  

A. Issuer’s Counsel 

The Authority will enter into an engagement letter agreement with each lawyer or law firm 

representing the Authority in a debt transaction.  No engagement letter is required for any lawyer 

who is an employee of the Office of the Attorney General and Reporter for the State of Tennessee 

who serves as counsel to the Authority or of the Office of General Counsel, Office of the 

Comptroller of the Treasury, that serves as counsel to SGF regarding Authority matters. 

B. Bond Counsel 

Bond counsel shall be engaged through SGF and serves to assist the Authority in all matters 

related to its debt issues under a written engagement letter.  

C. Financial Advisor 

The Financial Advisor shall be engaged through SGF and serve and assist the Authority on 

financial matters under a written contract. However, the Financial Advisor shall not be permitted 



 

12 

 

to bid on, privately place or underwrite an issue for which it is or has been providing advisory 

services.  The Financial Advisor has a fiduciary duty including a duty of loyalty and a duty of 

care. The Financial Advisor shall be a registered municipal advisor with the Municipal Securities 

Rulemaking Board (MSRB). 

D. Dealer or Remarketing Agent 

The Authority may enter into a Dealer Agreement with the appointed CP dealer or Remarketing 

Agent Agreement associated with variable rate debt offerings.  The Dealer and/or Remarketing 

Agent agrees to offer and sell the CP, or other variable rate debt, on behalf of the Authority, to 

investors and other entities and individuals that purchase CP.   

E. Issuing and Paying Agent 

The Authority shall appoint an Issuing and Paying Agent to act as paying agent and registrar for 

the Authority’s CP at all times while the CP is outstanding.  The Authority will execute an Issuing 

and Paying Agency Agreement with an appointed firm.  The Issuing and Paying Agent will be a 

bank, trust company, or national banking association that has trust powers.   

F. Credit/Liquidity Provider 

The Authority shall enter into a Credit/Liquidity Agreement with the appointed provider, if deemed 

necessary or advisable, for the CP.  The provider shall be a bank or lending institution, or the 

Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS) that extends credit to the Authority in the form 

of a revolving credit facility, a line of credit, a loan, or a similar credit product or as a liquidity 

facility for CP. 

G. Refunding Trustee 

The Refunding Trustee shall be appointed by resolution of the Authority adopted prior to the 

issuance of any of refunding bonds.  The Refunding Trustee will be a bank, trust company or 

national banking association that provides Paying Agent and Registrar services. 

H. Verification Agent 

The Verification Agent will be selected through a RFP process prior to the issuance of refunding 

bonds, if required.  The Verification Agent shall verify the cash flow sufficiency to the call date of 

the escrowed securities to pay the principal and interest due on the refunded bonds. 

I. Escrow Bidding Agent 

The Escrow Bidding Agent will be selected through a RFP process prior to the issuance of refunding 

bonds.  With regards to structuring the refunding escrow with investment securities, the Escrow 

Bidding Agent will prepare bidding specifications, solicit bids for investment securities, review, and 

evaluate responses to the bids, accept and award bids, and provide final certification to the Authority 

as to completion of requirements. 

Potential Conflicts of Interest 

Professionals involved in a debt transaction hired or compensated by the Authority shall be required to 

disclose to the Authority existing client and business relationships between and among the professionals to 

a transaction (including but not limited to financial advisor, swap advisor, bond counsel, swap counsel, 

trustee, paying agent, underwriter, counterparty, and remarketing agent), as well as conduit issuers, 

sponsoring organizations and program administrators and other issuers whom they may serve. This 

disclosure shall include such information that is reasonably sufficient to allow the Authority to understand 

the significance of the relationships.   



 

13 

 

Professionals who become involved in a debt transaction as a result of a bid submitted in a widely and 

publicly advertised competitive sale conducted using an industry standard, electronic bidding platform are 

not subject to this disclosure provision.  No disclosure is required if such disclosure would violate any rule 

or regulation of professional conduct. 

Debt Administration 

A. Planning for Sale 

      In planning for the sale of bonds, the procedures outlined below will be followed: 

• Prior to submitting a supplemental bond resolution to the Authority for approval, the 

Director of SGF (the “Director”), with the assistance of the Financial Advisor, will present 

to the staff of the members of the Authority information concerning the purpose of the 

financing, the estimated amount of financing, the proposed structure of the financing, the 

proposed method of sale for the financing, members of the proposed financing team, and 

an estimate of all the costs associated with the financing. 

• The Director (with the assistance of SGF staff), Bond Counsel, and Financial Advisor, 

along with other members of the financing team will prepare the preliminary official 

offering document (i.e., a Preliminary Official Statement) describing the transaction and 

the security for the debt that is fully compliant with all legal requirements. 

• In the case of a proposed refunding, proposed use of credit enhancement, or proposed use 

of variable rate debt, the Director will present the rationale for using the proposed debt 

structure, an estimate of the expected savings associated with the transaction and a 

discussion of the potential risks associated with the proposed structure. 

B. Preparing for Bond Closing 

 In preparation for the bond closing, the procedures outlined below will be followed:  

• The Director (with the assistance of SGF staff), Bond Counsel, and the Financial Advisor, 

along with other members of the financing team will prepare the offering document (i.e. 

an Official Statement) describing the transaction and the security for the debt that is fully 

compliant with all legal requirements. 

• The Financial Advisor will provide a closing memorandum with written instructions on 

transfer and flow of funds. 

• The Authority’s staff, with assistance from the Financial Advisor, will evaluate each bond 

sale after completion to assess the following: costs of issuance including the underwriter’s 

compensation, pricing of the bonds in terms of the overall interest cost and on a maturity-

by-maturity basis, and the distribution of bonds and sales credit, if applicable. 

• The Director will present a post-sale report to the members of the Authority describing the 

transaction and setting forth all the costs associated with the transaction. 

• Within 45 days from closing, the Director will prepare a Debt Report outlining costs related 

to the issuance and other information set forth in Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-134 and present 

the report at the next meeting of the Authority and file a copy with LGF.  

• The Director will establish guidelines and procedures for tracking the flow of all bond 

proceeds, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code, over the life of bonds reporting all 

arbitrage earnings associated with the financing and submitting any tax liability that may 

be owed to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). 



 

14 

 

• The Post-Issuance Compliance (PIC) team will meet annually to review matters related to 

compliance and complete the PIC checklist. 

• As a part of the PIC procedures, the Director (with the assistance of SGF staff) will, no less 

than annually, request and receive confirmation from the responsible department that there 

has been no change in use of tax-exempt financed facilities.  

For additional information on planning and preparing for a bond sale, see Standard Operating 

Procedure on Bond Issuance and Checklist.  

Federal Regulatory Compliance and Continuing Disclosure 

A.  Arbitrage  

The Authority, through SGF, will comply with arbitrage requirements on invested tax-exempt bond 

proceeds.  Proceeds that are to be used to finance construction expenditures are exempted from the 

filing requirements, provided that the proceeds are spent in accordance with requirements 

established by the IRS.  The Authority will comply with all of its tax certificates for its tax-exempt 

financings by monitoring the arbitrage earnings on bond proceeds on an interim basis and by 

rebating all positive arbitrage when due, pursuant to Internal Revenue Code, Section 148.  The 

Authority currently contracts with an arbitrage consultant to prepare these calculations when 

needed.  The Authority will also retain all records relating to debt transactions for as long as the 

debt is outstanding, plus three years after the final redemption date of the transaction.   

B. Investment of Proceeds 

Any proceeds or other funds available for investment by the Authority must be invested per Tenn. 

Code Ann. § 4-31-104(6), subject to any restrictions required pursuant to any applicable bond 

issuance authorization.  Compliance with federal tax code arbitrage requirements relating to 

invested tax-exempt bond funds will be maintained.  

Proceeds used to refund outstanding long-term debt shall be placed in an irrevocable refunding 

trust fund with the Refunding Trustee.  The investments (i) shall not include mutual funds or unit 

investment trusts holding such obligations, (ii) shall be rated no lower than the second highest rating 

category of both Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and Standard & Poor’s Global rating services, 

and (iii) shall mature and bear interest at such times and such amounts that will be sufficient without 

reinvestment together with any cash on deposit, to redeem the bonds to be refunded and to pay all 

interest due on the bonds to be refunded.   

C. Disclosure 

The Authority will disclose on the EMMA website the State’s audited Annual Comprehensive 

Financial Report as well as certain financial information and operating data required by the 

continuing disclosure undertakings (CDUs) for the outstanding bonds no later than January 31st of 

each year. The Authority will timely disclose any failure to provide required annual financial 

information by January 31st. The Authority will also, in accordance with the CDUs, disclose on the 

EMMA website within ten business days after the occurrence of any of the following events relating 

to the bonds to which the CDUs apply:  

• Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

• Nonpayment-related defaults, if material; 

• Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

• Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 



 

15 

 

• Substitution of credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform; 

• Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the IRS of proposed or final determinations of 

taxability, Notice of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or 

determinations with respect to the tax status of such bonds or other material events 

affecting the tax status of such bonds; 

• Modifications to rights of bondholders, if material; 

• Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

• Defeasances; 

• Release, substitution or sale of property securing the repayment of the bonds, if 

material; 

• Rating changes; 

• Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the State; 

• Consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Authority or 

sale of all or substantially all the assets of the Authority, other than in the course of 

ordinary business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or 

the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than 

pursuant to its terms, if material; 

• Appointment of successor trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material; 

• Incurrence of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, if material, or 

agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar 

terms of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of which affect 

security holders, if material; and/or 

• Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 

similar events under the terms of the financial obligation of the issuer or obligated 

person, any of which reflect financial difficulties.  

D. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 

The Authority will comply and prepare its financial reports in accordance with the standard 

accounting practices adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and with the 

accounting policies established by the Department of Finance and Administration when 

applicable. 

Review of the Policy 

The debt policy guidelines outlined herein are only intended to provide general direction regarding the 

future use and execution of debt. The Authority maintains the right to modify these guidelines and may 

make exceptions to any of them at any time to the extent that the execution of such debt achieves the 

Authority’s goals. 

This policy will be reviewed by the Authority no less frequently than annually.  At that time, the Director 

will present any recommendations for any amendments, deletions, additions, improvements, or 

clarification. 

  



 

16 

 

Adoption of the Policy 

1. After a public hearing on December 7, 2011, the Authority adopted this Policy, effective  
December 7, 2011. 

2. The Authority adopted and amended this Policy on May 22, 2017, effective May 11, 2017. 

 

3. The Authority adopted and amended this Policy on July 22, 2021, effective July 22, 2021. 

 

4. The Authority adopted and amended this Policy on July 22, 2024, effective July 22, 2024. 

 

5. The Authority adopted and amended this Policy on June 23, 2025, effective June 23, 2025. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_______________________________________________ 

Vice Chair 

Tennessee Local Development Authority 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

17 

 

 APPENDIX A 

Annual Review 

 

The Authority has reviewed and accepted the Debt Management Policy on: 

 

 October 8, 2014 

 November 19, 2015 

 July 20, 2020 

 July 26, 2022 

 June 27, 2023 

 



CITY OF PORTLAND 
100 S. RUSSELL STREET 

PORTLAND, TENNESSEE 37148 

Ms. Sandra Thompson 
Director 
Tennessee Local Development Authority 
Cordell Hull Building 
425 Rep John Lewis Way N 
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 

June 3, 2025 

Via Email 

Re: Not to exceed $757,000 Water and Sewer System Revenue and Tax Capital Outlay Note, Series 
2025, of the City of Portland, Tennessee 

Dear Ms. Thompson: 

The City of Portland, Tennessee (the "City"), intends to issue its $757,000 Water and Sewer System Revenue 
and Tax Capital Outlay Note, Series 2025 (the "Note"), for the purpose of financing the acquisition of a Jet Vac 
Truck and Camera Van for the City's sewer system, and to pay all legal, fiscal, administrative, architectural, and 
engineering costs incident thereto. 

The City understands that TLDA must be notified of the issuance, even if the Note will not be on a parity with 
any SRF loans the City has outstanding. 

Therefore, this is to give notice that the City acknowledges that the Note will be issued subordinate to its 
outstanding SRF Loans. 

The purchaser of the Note has agreed that the Note will be subordinate to the City's outstanding SRF Loans. 

The City adopted the necessary note resolution at its June 2, 2025 meeting, and plans to issue the Note by mid
July . 

If you have any questions or need any additional info1111ation, please let me know. 

Yours truly, 

C: Linda Mooningham 
Tennessee Municipal Bond Fund 


	AGENDA
	MINUTES May 19, 2025
	CWSRF Balance Report
	Brownsville Energy Authority
	City of Parsons
	Ocoee Utility District Analysis
	Ocoee Letter
	Debt Service Coverage
	Resolution1
	Resolution2
	Resolution3
	S&P Report
	Late Audit Letter
	Debt Management Policy
	PORTLAND NOTIFICATION



